TRACK 6		Anne Arundel County Watershed Restoration and Forestry Program Narrative Questions

Track 6 Watershed Restoration and Forestry Projects Narrative Questions
Note: Watershed Restoration and Forestry projects must combine elements from Track 3 and Track 5 to be eligible for this track. This track allows applicants to request funding to support stormwater BMPs and afforestation/reforestation efforts at shared project site in one request. 
Complete all questions in this narrative template. You will upload this document as a Microsoft Word or PDF file into the online application system. The narrative should be no more than five (5) pages of text, excluding question prompts, photos or materials such as letter(s) of commitment or additional supporting documents.
1. Project Location: Provide the address(es) or coordinates for the project site(s).
a. Is your project located in the Chesapeake Bay Critical Area? Determine if the project falls within the Critical Area using the Anne Arundel County’s MyAnneArundel map or the Maryland DNR’s – CBCA Critical Area Boundary map viewer.

2. [bookmark: _Hlk211241917]Project Background and Goals: Provide the background, purpose, and goals of this project. Justify the need for the project and describe the process and timeline for achieving the goals of the project.
a. Does the project meet the County or City’s stormwater and forestry priorities? Refer to Appendix A of the RFP for more information on the priorities.
b. Indicate how this project fits into other environmental stewardship activities occurring in the community. For example, are neighboring faith-based organizations or homeowner’s associations who may already be undertaking environmental activities going to be engaged in this project?
c. [bookmark: _Hlk213859351]Is your project identified within a local watershed plan? 
i. If yes, identify and explain your project in the context of the plan.
ii. If no, explain the project in the context of a subwatershed approach following a local or community-based watershed action plan.
d. Have you ensured that this project will not adversely impact public safety, infrastructure, and/or properties?
[bookmark: _Hlk211181096]
3. Watershed Restoration Technical Information:
a. Describe what practice(s) has/have been designed and what practice(s) will be implemented to achieve the specific objectives of the project. Explain how the proposed practices will address the stormwater issues identified on the site.
i. Is the project a small-scale restoration project with a disturbance footprint of less than 5,000 square feet or less than 100 cubic yards of soil OR a large-scale restoration project with a disturbance footprint greater than 5,000 square feet or more than 100 cubic yards of soil?
b. Provide your project’s estimated calculations for nutrient and sediment load reductions using the BMP Credit Calculator (https://www.aacounty.org/public-works/bwpr/watershed-assessment-planning/bmp-credit-calculator).

4. Forestry Technical Information:
a. List the total number, size, and species of native trees and shrubs to be planted.
b. Describe current land ownership, current land use, and proposed future uses for the land.
c. What is the timeline and plan for preparing the site for tree planting (if necessary), planting the trees, and obtaining long-term or permanent protection?
d. [bookmark: _Hlk213948434](For County only projects) Is your project located in a County designated or 6-digit targeted priority watershed area for Forestry? If yes, please specify which watershed your project is located in. Priority watershed areas can be found in the Forestry Resources tab at the bottom of the program webpage: https://cbtrust.org/grants/anne-arundel-county-watershed-restoration-and-forestry/. 
e. Will your project be an afforestation or reforestation project, or both? (Note: Afforestation is planting trees on land that previously has not been covered in forest. Reforestation is planting trees on land with existing forest.)
i. How many proposed acres will be afforested?
ii. How many proposed acres will be reforested?
f. Is the land already under a long-term protection vehicle that will allow reforestation/afforestation? If yes, explain what long-term protection exists. If not, specify whether the project will be protected through a permanent conservation easement (PCE) or a long-term protection agreement. Indicate the landowner’s willingness to permanently protect the land or sign a long-term protection agreement. Note: the duration of long-term protection will vary depending on where the project is located—the City of Annapolis will require a 10-year commitment, and the County will require a 30-year commitment. 
i. If a permanent conservation easement will be obtained:
1. How many acres will be preserved?
2. Describe the process for obtaining it, whether easement funds will be requested through this grant, and whether appraisals have been obtained (and if so, include appraisals in the application submission).

5. Maintenance, monitoring, and long-term project protection:
a. For the Watershed Restoration aspect of the project:
i. A maintenance plan for short-term (first growing season) and long-term (three years+) maintenance is required.  The County or the City will provide structural maintenance for long-term project protection (except living shorelines as noted below).
1. Describe what aesthetic maintenance activities that you, the landowner, or other parties will take to support short-and long-term maintenance of your project for each season (e.g., pruning, weeding, replacing plants, mowing, etc.) A maintenance template is available at https://cbtrust.org/wp-content/uploads/Annual-Landscape-Maintenance-Plan.docx.
2. [bookmark: _Hlk213238401]If applying for a living shoreline project, describe how the landowner will complete long-term maintenance of the project upon completion, in accordance with Maryland Department of the Environment (MDE)’s BMP verification protocols. https://mde.maryland.gov/programs/water/TMDL/TMDLImplementation/Documents/BMP-Verification/MD_NPS_BMPVerificationProtocols_3.12.25.pdf 
a. Attest to the landowner’s willingness to execute a MOU or maintenance agreement, including a private maintenance agreement, providing long-term protection of the living shoreline project and a commitment of the landowner to provide full structural and routine maintenance.
3. Long-term protection of the project is required for this award program. In some situations, a Memorandum of Understanding (MOU) with Anne Arundel County or a maintenance agreement with the City of Annapolis might be requested for your project site in addition to any long-term protections required for the forestry aspect of your project. Ultimately, this MOU or maintenance agreement will describe responsibilities for long-term protection of the project, to allow the County or City to access and inspect your project, and to claim any water quality, resource improvement, and/or credits resulting from the project. Attest to the landowners’ willingness to execute either a MOU with Anne Arundel County or a maintenance agreement with the City of Annapolis, if deemed necessary during the review of your project. 
b. For the Forestry aspect of the project:
i. Describe the overall health of the proposed site. Are there any observed invasive, non-native species on site?
ii. [bookmark: _Hlk211243429]In addition to the PCE or long-term protection agreement, detail the proposed long-term maintenance of the site to ensure that the newly planted trees will be well-maintained and meet the survivability requirements of the grant. If there are invasive species identified, explain how invasive regrowth will be monitored and addressed. Indicate who will be responsible for the various maintenance actions.
iii. Will the project include a Forest Management Plan or some similar maintenance/management plan to ensure that the site will be properly maintained?

6. Permitting: Please provide a summary of where your project is in the permitting process. Describe what permits will be required and where the project is in the permitting process/timeline, if applicable. List the county, state, and/or federal agencies with which you have been in contact with about your project. 

7. Required Projects: Funding partners are unable to fund projects or programs that are wholly required by a separate Federal, state, or locally issued permit, decree, or enforcement action, such as critical area buffer establishment.  In addition, funding partners cannot support projects that lead to financial benefit, such as creation of a mitigation bank. In some cases, funding partners may elect to fund optional portions of required projects that are in excess of regulatory requirements.
i. Is any part of your project required under any existing or pending permit, decree, or enforcement action?
ii. If any part of the project is required, state whether and how your proposal exceeds the regulatory requirements.

8. Qualifications and Experience: Describe your organization’s and/or project team’s experience successfully completing similar projects. 
a. Provide past project examples completed in the last five years and include the project name, location, short description of the project, and photos for each project. Project references may be provided but are not required.

9. Contractors and Partnerships: If an organization does not possess the technical expertise in an area needed for the project, qualified technical experts, agencies, or organizations must be identified as partners or contractors.
a. Has/will a contractor be hired and has a contractor been selected? (YES or NO)?
i. If “yes,” describe your contractor selection process, including justification and background of the selected contractor. If using a bid process, describe the process. Applicants are encouraged (but not required) to have either already obtained three cost estimates or quotes prior to completing the application.
ii. If “no,” describe how you will attain the contractor services.
b. List any project partners and describe their roles in completing the project.

10. [bookmark: _Hlk211119379]Community Engagement:
a. What is the community’s involvement and interest in the proposed project? I.e. is there buy-in? Are the community’s needs and desires being considered?
b. Will the community be involved in the project through any volunteer events or outreach programming? Volunteer/outreach programming is not required but encouraged.
i. Describe how you will share the project with the public to engage and educate them on the value/benefits of the project. 
c. Educational, interpretive signage is required after project completion. Confirm that signage will be included at the site and has been discussed with the landowner. Include signage costs in the budget if you intend to use grant funds to create the signage.

11. Sustainability: The Trust aims to invest in projects that have the longest potential longevity, after the award period has ended. 
a. How will ownership of the project be transferred to the landowner or community served, if the applicant is not the landowner?
i. Does the landowner or community have a plan for ensuring that the outcomes of the project will be implemented and/or maintained?
b. Several threats exist that may result in loss of project value: change in public interest in an effort; changes in rainfall or sea level associated with climate change; change in land use; and more.
i. What factors may affect your project’s long-term value and how will you ensure that its long-term value is maximized?
ii. How will addressing climate change impacts be incorporated into the project assessment, plan, or design? For climate resources such as mapping your project area with future water levels, refer to Appendix B of the RFP).
c. If the project or program will need ongoing financial resources in order to maintain its value, please provide an abbreviated plan describing how the project will be sustained beyond the term of the proposed funding request.

12. Budget Justification: Provide justification for the budget line items proposed in your application budget. Ensure that your budget clearly identifies what expenses support the Watershed Restoration aspect of the work versus the Forestry aspect. 
Note: If implementation of a BMP requires trees to be replanted for mitigation associated with a permit, forestry funds cannot be used to fund these plantings.
a. Is there cash-match or in-kind match included? Match is not required but viewed favorably by reviewers. Examples of in-kind match may include donated contractor time or maintenance.
b. For the Watershed Restoration aspect of the project, what is your project’s cost per impervious acre treated and cost per pound of pollutants removed. For living shorelines, what is the cost compared to ecological value?
c. For the Forestry aspect of the project, what is the cost per acre to reforest, afforest, and/or preserve the project?

13. Demonstration Value: Describe how the successes and outcomes of this project could be transferred to other communities. How can this project be used as a model for future efforts?

14. Demographics: in light of the Trust's commitment to the advancement of diversity in its grant-making, provide demographic information about the community or population involved in or served by the project. The Trust encourages applicants to establish partnerships with local organizations that may have greater cultural competencies than the applicant, where needed, within the targeted demographic(s). Cultural competence involves understanding and appropriately responding to the unique combination of cultural variables that the community or population bring to interactions.
a. Provide your organization’s experience working within the specific communities that you will be prioritizing. If you have not had significant experience within your prioritized demographic, explain how you intend to address this issue; the Trust encourages applicants to establish partnerships with local organizations that may have greater cultural competencies within the targeted demographic(s).
b. [bookmark: _Hlk213155773]Is the audience being engaged in the project identified as overburdened, under-served, or as having a lower community well-being index score through resources and indicators such as, but not limited to:
i. MD EnviroScreen Tool; 
ii. Anne Arundel County’s Community Wellbeing Index; or
iii. Any localized, relevant socio-economic data and research. 

15. Supporting Documents: Submit any relevant documents as attachments to your narrative questions, including:
a. Photos of the site. Include photos that show key features, such as forest quality, streams or other waterways, habitat indicator species, and/or landmarks.
b. Maps of the site that include the property address, boundaries of full parcels, proximity to critical area, location in or close to a priority watershed area as identified by the County.
c. Any existing maintenance plans (forest management plan, forest stewardship plan, etc.)
d. Landowner permission through a Letter of Commitment to access the site and implement the project, if project is on land not owned by the applicant. Ensure the landowner permission includes support for project implementation and long-term maintenance.
e. Design and planting plans.
f. Letters of Commitments from any listed contractor or partner specifying the technical assistance they will provide, their staff’s level of effort, the funding provided, and/or the resources needed for success.
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